

Rel. 1.1

Web-based access to DBSG3 data sets

September 2nd 2006

Table of Contents

1	INT	FRODUCTION	3
2	FU	NCTIONAL OVERVIEW OF THE SOFTWARE	3
3	DA	TA MAINTENANCE PROCEDURE	4
	3.1	Microsoft Excel	4
	3.2	Solution Based on CSV editor	4
4	IV.	USE CASES	5
	4.1	Common user and table keeper use cases	5
	4.2	System administrator use cases	6
5	US	ER INTERFACE DESIGN	7
	5.1	Login page	7
	5.2	Common user main menu	8
	5.3	Table keeper main menu	8
	5.4	System manager main menu	9
	5.5	data set categories	9
	5.6	Data set sub-categories	10
	5.7	Download data set	10
	Select	data set to search	11
	5.8	Search in data set	12
	5.9	Download search results	13
	5.10	Upload data set	13
	5.11	Upload data set (missing input fields)	14
	5.12	Publish data set (step 1)	15
	5.13	Publish data set (step 2)	16
	5.14	Reject data set	16
	5.15	View event log	17
	5.16	Manage users (step 1)	17
	5.17	Manage users (step 2)	18
6	TA	BLE KEEPER ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION	18
7	DA	TA MIGRATION PLAN	19
	7.1	Step 1 – Schema conversion	20
	7.2	Step 2 – Data conversion	21
	7.3	Step 3 – Data publishing	21

1 Introduction

This document is the user guide for the the Web-DBSG3 software application. The DBSG3 main task is to provide access/management/distribution of the radiowave propagation measurements database, maintained by the ITU-R SG3.

The document is organized as follows:

- Section II is a functional overview of the capabilities of the software.
- Section III describes Procedures for Maintenance of the data sets.
- Use cases diagrams for the various categories of users are provided in Section IV.
- Section V describes the Web-based user interface of the system.
- Section VI is made of an activity diagram for the table keeper role.
- The data migration plan is presented in Section VII.

The server can be accessed through the WEB at the address:

http://saruman.estec.esa.nl/dbsg3/login.jsp

Please note that INTERNET cookies must be enabled on the browser to access the system.

Usernames and password to access the system can be requested to:

Antonio Martellucci European Space Agency, ESTEC, TEC-EEP E-mail: <u>Antonio.Martellucci@esa.int</u> e-m: <u>amartel@ties.itu.ch</u>

2 Functional overview of the software

Web-DBSG3 enables users to browse, search, download, update and publish DBSG3 data sets from a browser-based interface. Three groups of users are supported. Common users have access to the browse, search and download capabilities only. Table keepers may also upload new versions of the data sets they are managing. Finally, the system administrator has the ability to approve or reject new data set versions for publication, to manage users and to keep track of system events. These features are listed below and describe in more details through activity diagrams, and user interface pages in the following sections.

Common users

- Login / logout
- Browse data sets by categories (e.g. Terrestrial line-of-sight) and sub-categories (e.g. Rain attenuation data).
- Select a data set.
- Download a full data set.
- Fill in search criteria on the searchable fields of a data set such as date, frequency, elevation angle, location, and download the matching records of this data set only.

Table keepers

- Common user features.
- Upload a new version of a data set and submit it for publication.

System administrator

- Common user features
- View data sets submitted for publication by table keepers
- Approve or reject each submitted data set
- Create/Modify/Delete a user

• View a log of system events

3 Data maintenance Procedure

The main criteria for tools used for the maintenance of the data sets by the table keepers are:

- integrity of the data
- reliability
- ease of use for the table keepers and the system administrator

Solutions are described hereunder.

3.1 MICROSOFT EXCEL

The use of Microsoft Excel has also been investigated. Excel proved able to import and export CSV files reliably. Upon importing a CSV file, Excel makes guesses about the data types of the fields. However, these data types will not be enforced by Excel, in the sense that a user may redefine the contents of a cell as he wishes. Therefore, although Excel can be used as a convenient data set editing tool, additional data validation also has to be performed in the DBSG3 Web application whenever a new data set version has been uploaded by a table keeper. A key is with Access is that Excel does not enforce properly the data types.

The format of data fields is also dependent on the user locale and version of Excel itself (US-English, French, Dutch, etc). Therefore, Excel can be used with some caveats but is not the most practical solution.

3.2 SOLUTION BASED ON CSV EDITOR

Based on this discussion, the following pragmatic solution has been chosen:

- Users download data sets as CSV files (not XML).
- Table keepers edit these CSV files with a dedicated CSV editor, downloadable from the DBSG3 site, and then upload the modified CSV files.
- A data validation tool is custom-developed as part of the DBSG3 application. This tool will parse the CSV file, extract one row at a time, set each missing field to NULL and use the JDBC API for inserting the row into the corresponding database table. If data type errors or non-nullable field errors are returned by Oracle, the diagnostic will be captured by the tool. The following line will be written in the diagnostic file, with substitution by the actual values:

<STATION_NO> <EXP_NO> <DIAGNOSTIC>

so that the table keeper will receive a diagnostic file with one such entry per offending record. As the (STATION_NO, EXP_NO) uniquely identify a record, the table keeper will be able to trace the source of the error based on this information.

- The data validation will have the following transactional behavior with the database:
 - Start transaction
 - Create temporary table 'LIKE' published data set table (same structure)
 - For each row in CSV file:
 - Insert row
 - If error, log into diagnostics file
 - Rollback transaction
- If the whole data set is valid, the table keeper may then change its status to "submitted for publication".

• The system administrator may then download the CSV file for inspection, and eventually decide to accept or reject it.

4 IV. Use cases

This section contains two use cases diagrams illustrating the use cases available to each category of user, in UML notation. For convenience, common user and table keepers use cases are grouped on a single diagram. System administrator-specific use cases are specified in a separate diagram.

4.1 COMMON USER AND TABLE KEEPER USE CASES



This use case diagram depicts usage of the DBSG3 system by common users and table keepers (TKs). Since TK inherits from common user, all use cases performed by the common user can be performed by the TK.

First of all, users must log into the system in order to be given access to functionalities depending on their credentials. To avoid confusion, the system will filter out inaccessible functionalities from the interface. All users are authenticated; there is no guest or anonymous access. Logging out cancels the user's session and resets the interface to the main menu page.

All DBSG3 users share a set of basic functionalities:

- browsing through categories and published data sets
- downloading a published data set
- searching in a published data set and downloading search results

Selecting a data set involves browsing through categories and sub-categories down to the data set level. Only one data set is published at a given time for a leaf category (see system manager UC).

In addition to this common set of functionalities, TKs can upload a new data set in a leaf category. Upon validation success, this new data set can then be inserted in the workflow with the state "submitted" (see data set state diagram in section VII). A comment can be associated with a data set submission.

4.2 SYSTEM ADMINISTRATOR USE CASES



System manager is a role derived from TK, itself derived from common user. This means System Managers (SM) can access all functionalities available to these two other roles. In addition to that, SMs have access to functionalities that can be split in two categories: workflow management and application maintenance.

The SM role can update the state of a data set in the workflow by performing scenarios from the "publish data set", "reject data set" and "change published data set version" use cases. The data set states are described in more details in section VII.

Before either publishing or rejecting data sets, the SM reviews the list of data sets submitted by table keepers for all categories. When publishing or rejecting, a comment can be associated with the action. Whenever a data set is rejected, the table keeper who submitted it is notified by email.

A System Manager can also manage users of the system and their credentials (i.e. access to common user or TK features), and monitor system usage by viewing the event log.

5 User interface design

This section illustrates the functionalities of the application through screenshots of the user interface.

References to the use case diagrams are included and the use case descriptions should therefore be used as a reference.

5.1 LOGIN PAGE

 \rightarrow Log in use case

😻 DBSG3 - Login - Mozilla Firefox	<u>- ×</u>
<u>File Edit View Go Bookmarks Iools H</u> elp	
Please fill in your username and password Username : keeper Password : ******	
Send	
Developed by Ubiquity SA.	

This page allows the user to log into the system. Login is a prerequisite to access all other functionalities.

5.2 COMMON USER MAIN MENU

😢 DE	35G3 - Mai	n menu - Mozilla Fir	efox		<u>- ×</u>
Eile	<u>E</u> dit ⊻ie•	v <u>G</u> o <u>B</u> ookmarks	<u>T</u> ools	Help	
		V			
	Main me	nu			Log out
	Main me	nu			
	Welcome	to DBSG3 Mr. use	r user (ı	iser)	
	Downloa Downloa	d or Search data se d CSVdb (Recomm	ended C	SV editor)	
	Develope	d by Ubiquity SA.			

After logging in, the user is redirected to the main menu page. Depending on his credentials, he will have access to a different set of functionalities. This is the menu for the lowest credential level, the common user.

5.3 TABLE KEEPER MAIN MENU

😢 D	85G3 -	Main r	nenu	- Mozilla Fii	efox		
Eile	<u>E</u> dit	⊻iew	<u>G</u> o	<u>B</u> ookmarks	<u>T</u> ools	Help	
		T					
	Maii	n men	u				Log out
	Mai	n men	u				
	Weld	come to	DBS	SG3 Mr. Ant	onio Ma	rtellucci (keeper)	
	Dow Uplo View Dow	nload (ad and / submi nload (or Se subr itted CSVd	arch data s nit data set data sets b (Recomm	et iended (CSV editor)	
	Deve	eloped	Бу UВ	oiquity SA.			

This page is the main menu that table keepers will see after logging in. Note that at any point, the user is able to return to the main menu. He does not have to log in again if his session is still valid. The maximum idle time is configured in the web server. The session expires if the browser is closed.

5.4 SYSTEM MANAGER MAIN MENU

😻 DI	35G3 -	Main n	nenu -	- Mozilla Fire	efox		_ 🗆 🗵
Eile	<u>E</u> dit	⊻iew	<u>G</u> o	<u>B</u> ookmarks	Tools	Help	1. A.
		Ţ					
	Maii	n men	u				Log out
	Maii	n men	u				
	Weld	ome to	DBS	G3 Mr. Mar	tellucci	Antonio (administrator)	
	Dow Revi Chai Man- View Dow	nload o ew sub nge pul age use revent nload (or Sea mitter blisher ers log CSVdb	orch data se d data sets d version (Recomme	t ended (:SV editor)	
	Deve	loped	Бу ОБі	iquity SA.			

This is the most complete main menu, accessible to users with system manager credentials. It gives access to all functionalities.

5.5 DATA SET CATEGORIES

 \rightarrow Browse available data sets use case

😢 D	35G3 -	Tables	- Moz	illa Firefox:			_ 🗆 🗵
Eile	<u>E</u> dit	⊻iew	<u>G</u> o	<u>B</u> ookmarks	<u>T</u> ools	s <u>H</u> elp	
	Į,	TU					
	Main	menu					Log out
	Brow	se tab	les				
	Data S	Sets fo	r tabl	es list :			
	Terres Earth- Terres Radior Terres Terres Mobile Name	strial lir space strial tr meteor strial la strial bi strial bi strial bi strial bi strial bi	ne-of- path (ans-hi ologic nd mo roadca te ser detern	sight (C1) C2) orizon (C3) al (C4) obile (C5) ast (C6) vices (C7) nined (C8)	I		
	Back t	:o mair	men	u			•

Browsing categories is one of the most common functionalities. It is required for the "download data set", "search data set", "upload data set" and "change published version" use cases. After selecting either of these use cases, the user is redirected to the corresponding screen.

5.6 DATA SET SUB-CATEGORIES

Browse available data sets use case

😢 Di	85G3 -	Tables	- Moz	illa Firefox					<u>-0×</u>	۱
Eile	<u>E</u> dit	⊻iew	Go	<u>B</u> ookmarks	<u>T</u> ools	<u>H</u> elp				
	Į,	TU								•
	Main	menu							Log out	
	Brows	se tabl	es							
	Data S	Sets for	Eart	h-space	path :					
	Annua W.M. r Fade c Site di Annua Annua Annua Std de Slant j	I rain at ain att luration versity I XPD s I XPD of scintilla v of sc path fac	tt, sta , stat, , stat, , stat, (, cond, f ation s intillat de slo	t. (C2_1) (C2_2) (C2_3) (C2_4) C2_5A) to CPA (C: tat. (C2_6 ion (C2_7 pe stat. (C	2_5B) 5)) (2_8)					
	Back t	o table	s list							-

By selecting a root category, the user is presented with the list of sub-categories for that category, as shown in this screen (sub categories for the root Mobile-satellite services category). After selecting a leaf category, the user will view data sets in that category and take action depending on the functionality he initially chose. This is demonstrated on the screenshots below.

5.7 DOWNLOAD DATA SET

 \rightarrow Download data set use case

185	5G3 - I	Publis	ned da	ata Sets - M	ozilla Firefo	ж								
	<u>E</u> dit	⊻iew	<u>G</u> o	<u>B</u> ookmarks	<u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> e	lp								
	Main	men											Log ou	t
I	Dowr	nload	or Se	earch data	set									-
Published data sets for table Annual rain att. stat. :														
I	Publis	shed d	ata se	ets for table	Annual ra	ain att. st	tat. :							
	Publis Co	shed d de	ata se	ets for table Label	Annual ra	ain att. st tted Pub	tat. : lished	Comment on submit	Comment on publish	Submitted by				
	Publis Co C2_1	shed d de L_v1 2	ata se 00605	ets for table Label 504_AM_01	Annual ra Submit 2006-05	ain att. st tted Pub 5-04 2006	tat. : lished 5-05-04	Comment on submit view	Comment on publish view	Submitted by keeper	₹ Q			

This screenshot demonstrates the download data set use case. In this example, after choosing the "Clear air basic trans loss" category, the user can download the published data set. He has access to the submission date, the published date, and can view comments for both of these events in a pop-up window (see below).

🕹 http://saruman.estec.esa.nl - DB5G3 - Comment - Mozilla Firefox	- 🗆 🗵
Publication comment for data set : 20060504_AM_01	
VO: Import of DBSGV data by ESA (AM)	
V1: Correction of conversion errors	
Close	

SELECT DATA SET TO SEARCH

 \rightarrow Select data set use case

) DI	35G3 -	Publis	hed d	ata Sets - M	ozilla Firefo	ж					_0
ile	<u>E</u> dit	⊻iew	<u>G</u> o	<u>B</u> ookmarks	<u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> el	lp					
	ĺ	T									
	Mair	n men	u								Log out
	Publi: Co	shed d	ata s	ets for table Label	Annual ra Submit	ain att. stat. : ted Published	Comment on submit	Comment on publish	Submitted by		
	C2_:	1_v1 2	0060	504_AM_01	2006-05	5-04 2006-05-04	view	view	keeper		

This screen allows the user to select the data set he wants to search through.

5.8 SEARCH IN DATA SET

 \rightarrow Search in data set use case

😻 DBSG3 - Sea	irch data	a set - Mozill	a Firefo	×		
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> ie	w <u>G</u> o	<u>B</u> ookmarks	<u>T</u> ools	Help		ं
						Ê
	J					
	٢					
Main men	u				Log ou	t
Search in	data se	et C2_1				
Please sele	ct your	search crite	ria.			
Date Form Decimal se	at is : y parator	yyy/MM/d is:.	d			
□ R_C1	RY	equal	-	Γ		
🗆 R_LA	TITUDE	=		Γ	deg Range from -90.0 to 90.0	
🗆 R_LO	NGITUD	= -		Γ	deg Range from 0.0 to 360.0	
🗆 R_AL	TITUDE	equal	7	Γ	m	
SATE	L_POS	= 🔻		Γ	deg Range from 0.0 to 360.0	
🗌 ТҮРЕ		equal		Γ		
🗆 STAR	T_DATE	equal		Ţ	and	
END_	DATE	equal		7	and	
🗆 DURA	TION	= 7		Γ	days	
🗆 FREQ	UENCY	= 🔻			GHz	
D POL_	L_C	equal	7			
🗆 POLA	R	=			deg	
ELEV	ATION	= _			deg Range from 0.0 to 90.0	
🗆 RAIN	_CONC	equal	7			
	E_T	equal	7			
	arch >>					
380	101 22					
						-

After selecting the data set to search in (see previous screen), the user can specify search criteria. Each search criterion can be activated or deactivated with a check-box. The available search criteria are listed, and for each of them the user can choose the operator (=, <, >= etc.) and specify the value. The list of available search criteria depends on the data set and has been specified in the Excel spreadsheet. When available in the meta-data for the data set, the unit is displayed.

5.9 DOWNLOAD SEARCH RESULTS

 \rightarrow Download search results use case

Opening query-C2_1_v1.csv	×								
You have chosen to open									
💐 query-C2_1_v1.csv									
which is a: Microsoft Office Excel Comma Separated Values File from: http://saruman.estec.esa.nl									
What should Firefox do with this file?									
O Open with Microsoft Office Excel (default)									
Save to Disk									
Do this automatically for files like this from now on.									
OK Cancel									

Once the search has been initiated, the user is presented with this screen and can download the results of his search. These results are a subset of the data set's records.

5.10 UPLOAD DATA SET

 \rightarrow Upload new data set use case

😢 D	85G3 -	Upload ·	- Moz	illa Firefox							_ 🗆	×
Eile	Edit	⊻iew	<u>G</u> o	<u>B</u> ookmarks	<u>T</u> ools	<u>H</u> elp						
		183										
		TU										
		X										
	Main	menu									Log out	
	Uploa	ad and	valid	ate data	set file	1						
	Please	e select f	the d	ata set to	upload	csv).						
	Categ	ory : An	nual	rain att. st	at.							
	Down	load CS1	V tem	plate								
	Data :	set archi	ive fil	e :								
					1	frowse						
	Sen	Ы										
	Back :	to Earth-	-spac	e path								
	Devel	oped by	Ubiqu	uity SA.								

Table keepers can not only download but also upload data sets. This form allows them to do so by specifying a file on their file system, a label, and an optional comment. The browse button opens an OS/browser specific file system select window.

5.11 UPLOAD DATA SET (MISSING INPUT FIELDS)

 \rightarrow Upload new data set use case

😢 D	85G3 -	Submi	t – Mo	ozilla Firefox					
Eile	Edit	<u>V</u> iew	<u>G</u> o	<u>B</u> ookmarks	<u>T</u> ools	Help			0
	Į,								
1	Main n	nenu							Log out
	Bubmi	t a val	id da	ata set					
·	Fhe da	ta set v	vill no	ow enter the	workfl	ow in state submitted. Pleas	specify a label. You can a	also provide a comment.	
	Cate	gory : A	Annua	al rain att. s	tat.				
	Data	Set labe	el : [
	Your	comme	nts :						
	Ser	nd							
									•

The upload form, as any form in the system, is subject to validation. This process ensures that every mandatory field is filled in and notifies the user otherwise. Here is, as an example, the result of submitting an incomplete upload form.

5.12 PUBLISH DATA SET (STEP 1)

\rightarrow Publish data set use case

Edit View Go Bookmarks Lools Help Wain menu Log ou View submitted data sets Submitted data sets Submitted data sets (all keepers) : Submitted data sets (all keepers) : Dataset Label Submitted Submitted by C2_1 test 2006-10-03 view Image: Submitted by Back to main menu Subel Ubiquity SA. Submitted by Image: Submitted by	0563 -	Submit	ed d	ata Sets - N	1ozilla I	irefox					_ [
Main menu Log ou View submitted data sets Submitted data sets Submitted data sets (all keepers) : Image: Comment on submitted by submitted by c2_1 test 2006-10-03 view Keeper Image: C2_1 test 3ack to main menu Submitted by Ubiquity SA.	<u>E</u> dit	⊻iew	<u>G</u> o	<u>B</u> ookmarks	Tools	Help					
Main menu Log ou View submitted data sets Submitted data sets Submitted data sets (all keepers) : Image: Submitted by Ubiguity SA.	\sim										
Main menu Log ou Wiew submitted data sets Submitted data sets Submitted data sets (all keepers) : Image: C2_1 test 2006-10-03 view keeper C2_1 test 2006-10-03 view keeper Image: C2_1 test Content on test keeper Back to main menu Developed by Ubiquity SA.											
Main menu View submitted data sets Submitted data sets (all keepers) : Dataset Label Submitted Comment on submit Submitted by C2_1 test 2006-10-03 view keeper ?	-ĥ	IU									
Main menu Log ou View submitted data sets Submitted data sets (all keepers) : Dataset Label Submitted by C2_1 test 2006-10-03 view keeper Back to main menu											
View submitted data sets Submitted data sets (all keepers) : Dataset Label Submitted Submitted by C2_1 test 2006-10-03 view keeper ?	Main	menu									Log out
Submitted data sets (all keepers) : Dataset Label Submitted Comment on submitted by submitted by submitted by submitted by 2006-10-03 C2_1 test 2006-10-03 view keeper	View	suhmit	ted	data sets							
Dataset Label Submitted Comment on submit Submitted by C2_1 test 2006-10-03 view keeper The second seco	TICW	Submit	ceu .	uata sets							
Dataset Label Submitted Comment on submit Submitted by C2_1 test 2006-10-03 view keeper The second seco											
Dataset Label Submitted Comment on submitted by submitted by keeper C2_1 test 2006-10-03 view keeper Back to main menu Sack to main menu Sack to main menu Sack to main menu	Subm	itted dat	a se	ts (all keep	ers):						
Dataset Label Submitted Submitted on submit Submitted by C2_1 test 2006-10-03 view keeper											
C2_1 test 2006-10-03 view keeper <table-cell> 🔝 🖃</table-cell>	D	ataset			Label		Submitted	Comment on submit	Submitted by		
Back to main menu Developed by Ubiquity SA.		C2_1	·	test			2006-10-03	view	keeper	₹ ,≣ ₹	
Back to main menu Developed by Ubiquity SA.										-	
Back to main menu Developed by Ubiquity SA.											
Back to main menu Developed by Ubiquity SA.											
Developed by Ubiquity SA.	васк	to main	men	u .							
Developed by Ubiquity SA.											
Developed by Ubiquity SA.	- I		116.1-	with CA							
		opea by	UDIO	шку эж.							
	Devel		_								
	Devel										
	Devel										
	Devel										
	Devel										
	Deven										
	Devel										

This screen demonstrates the system manager's Review submitted data sets use case. After selecting this functionality from the main menu, the SM has access to a list of all data sets in the submitted state. This view provides information on the category, label, submission date, submission optional comment (pop-up) and the table keeper.

The SM can publish any of these data sets, which puts it in the "published" state (available to all users), automatically archiving the previous published data set in that category. He can also reject the data set (the TK will be notified by email). By clicking the submitter name, a profile window is opened (see edit profile).

5.13 PUBLISH DATA SET (STEP 2)

 \rightarrow Publish data set use case

Publish - Mozilla Firefox	
le <u>E</u> dit <u>Vi</u> ew <u>G</u> o <u>B</u> ookmarks <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp	
Main menu	Log out
Publish data set	
The selected data set will be published. This will make it available to all users.	
Label : test	
Category : Annual rain att. stat.	
Comment	
Publish	
Developed by Uki-site Co	
Developed by boldary 54.	

When the SM chooses to publish a data set, he is redirected to that page, where he can specify an associated comment.

5.14 REJECT DATA SET

 \rightarrow Reject data set use case

😻 Reject - Mozilla Firefox			J×
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>G</u> o <u>B</u> oo	kmarks <u>T</u> ools	Help	
			<u>•</u>
Main menu		Log out	
Reject data set			
The selected data set w	ill be rejected.	This will remove it from the workflow.	
Label : test			
Category : Annual rain	att. stat.		
Submitted at : 2006-10-	·03		
Comment			
Reject			
Developed by Ubiquity S	A.		-

When the SM chooses to reject a data set, he is redirected to that page, where he can explain his decision.

5.15 VIEW EVENT LOG

 \rightarrow Monitor system usage use case

😻 D	85G3 -	Event	log – N	1ozilla Fire	fox		
Eile	Edit	⊻iew	<u>G</u> o	<u>B</u> ookmarks	Tools	Help	
	-Ú	TU					
	Main	menu					Log out
	Event	log					
	Please	provi	de a o	late range	to displ	ay log messages.	
	View I	og fror	n dat	э (үүүү-м	м-оо) 🖟	004-01-01	
	to dat	e (mm	Y-MM-	DD)		004-01-05	
					I	Search	
	05.0 05.0 05.0 05.0	1.2004 1.2004 1.2004 1.2004	4 16:3 4 16:3 4 16:3 4 16:3	3:10 [log 3:18 [log 3:23 [log 3:45 [log	in] Mr. A out] Mr. in] Mr. S out] Mr.	ain Rogister has logged in Alain Rogister has logged out ystem Administrator has logged in System Administrator has logged out	
	Back t	o mair	n men	U			
	Deven	ibea pi	y 0010	any sa.			

The monitor system usage is demonstrated by this screen. The SM can view an event log and trace the significant actions of all users of the system. The log is searchable for a given date range. The time of the event is provided, as well as the unique ID of the user who triggered it and a description of the event.

5.16 MANAGE USERS (STEP 1)

 \rightarrow Manage users use case

DB	5G3 - 1	Users -	Mozilla	Firefox							_ 🗆 ×
jile	<u>E</u> dit	⊻iew	<u>G</u> o <u>B</u>	ookmarks	<u>T</u> ools <u>t</u>	<u>H</u> elp					
M	lain m lanage st of c	e user:	s users c	f the sys	tem :					L	og out
	User	name	1	Role	Surnar	me	Forename	Email			
k	eeper		keep	er	Martelluc	ci A	Antonio	Antonio.Martellucci@esa.int	Edit	Delete	
а	idmin		admi	nistrator	Administr	rator S	System	arg@ubiquity.be	Edit	Delete	
d	lvanho	enacke	r keep	er	Danielle	\ \	/anhoenacker	vanhoenacker@emic.ucl.ac.be	Edit	Delete	
d	lmerte	ns	keep	er	David	P	Mertens	mertens@emic.ucl.ac.be	Edit	Delete	
ь	ertran	n	admi	nistrator	Arbesser	-R. E	Bertram	bertram@tec-ee.esa.int	Edit	Delete	•

This screen displays an overview of the system's registered users. For each user, the SM can take two actions: he may either delete the user, banning him/her from the system, or edit his/her profile (see following screen).

The SM can also add a new user, granting him access to functionalities of the system that will depend on the chosen credentials level. He is then presented with a blank profile form.

5.17 MANAGE USERS (STEP 2)

 \rightarrow Manage users use case

😻DB5G3 - User profile - M	lozilla Firefox		
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>G</u> o <u>B</u> o	okmarks <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp		
Main menu			Log out
User profile			
Fields in bold are man	datory.		
ID (read only)	5		
Username (unique)	keeper		
Password	****		
Confirm password	****		
Role	Table keeper 💽		
Title	Mr		
Surname	Martellucci		
Forename	Antonio		
E-mail	Antonio.Martellucci@esa.int		
Phone			
Street			
Street number			
Postal code			
Locality			
Country	Netherlands	•	
Authorized Tables	C1_1 C1_2 C1_3 C1_4 C1_5		
	Send	Cancel	

This form allows the SM to edit the profile of a user. The SM is redirected to that screen if he chooses either to edit an existing profile or to create a new one.

The role field defines the level of credentials, and thus the possible use of the system for that user.

If the password is changed, it must be confirmed in the Confirm password field. If the cancel button is pressed, the SM is redirected to the list of users.

6 Table keeper activity description

This diagram describes the sequence of activities performed by the TK when updating a data set. First, the TK edits his data set with his tool of choice. Data sets are downloaded in CSV (comma separated value) format and thus easily imported in a tool like Excel or Access. Once the TK has finished editing his data set, he uses his tool of choice to convert it back to CSV.

DBSG3 User Guide

Issue: 1.

The modified CSV is then uploaded into the system, where it is verified for compliance with the database schema for this particular data set. If the data set is not valid, a diagnostics file is generated. This file can then be downloaded by the TK in order to identify the inconsistencies of the uploaded data set. After correcting the data set, the TK can upload it again. After the uploaded data set has been validated, the TK can either discard it or submit it. This gives the TK the ability to validate a working version of a data set without sending it in the approval workflow.

When submitted, the data set enters the workflow and will be reviewed by the system manager and either published or rejected.



7 Data migration plan

This task involves three steps: the migration of the database schema first, then the manual conversion of the existing data sets to the new format (with stricter data types), and finally the import of the converted data sets into the new database. These steps are described below.



7.1 STEP 1 – SCHEMA CONVERSION

As the reference definition of the data sets has been provided by ESTEC in Excel format, a SchemaGenerator tool was designed for reading the contents of the spreadsheet through an ODBC driver and creating the PointBase schema through JDBC. The SchemaGenerator uses the data type, length and precision declarations in the spreadsheet for assigning the proper SQL data type to each column in the target PointBase database. The type mapping is:

"N", length, precision	\rightarrow	NUMBER(length, precision)
"C", length	\rightarrow	VARCHAR2(length)
"D"	\rightarrow	DATE

The (STATION_NO, EXP_NO) fields are used jointly as the primary key for each data set table.

The START, END and REFERENCES fields are renamed as START_DATE, END_DATE and REFERENCES_EXP in the target database, as they are reserved keywords in SQL.

The algorithm of the SchemaGenerator is described with a sequence diagram below.

7.2 STEP 2 – DATA CONVERSION

This step is performed by the table keepers. The expected output is one CSV file per data set, containing the full contents of the data set in compliance with the list of fields, their ordering and their type as defined in the Excel spreadsheet and the PointBase database schema. After converting a data set and saving it as a CSV file, a table keeper uploads it to the DBSG3 Web site where it is validated. If the data is valid, the table keeper can submit it for publication; otherwise data must be corrected and re-submitted.

7.3 STEP 3 – DATA PUBLISHING

This step is performed by the system administrator. Publishing has the following database semantics:

- Start transaction
- Read validated data set
- Delete all rows of the database table currently published
- Insert all rows of the validated data set
- Update meta-data table : set publication timestamp of the data set
- Commit transaction